# **Planning Committee Meeting**

# Online Meeting, Virtual Meeting Platform Thursday, 04 March 2021 at 18:00

The Planning Committee deals with planning applications,

planning enforcement, public rights of way and certain highway matters. If you wish to come to the meeting please arrive in good time. Usually, only one person for and one person against each application is permitted. Attendance between <u>5.30pm</u> and <u>5.45pm</u> will greatly assist in enabling the meeting to start promptly.

### Information for Members of the Public

Access to information and meetings

You have the right to observe all meetings of the Council, its Committees and Cabinet including those which may be conducted online such as by live audio or video broadcast / webcast. You also have the right to see the agenda (the list of items to be discussed at a meeting), which is published on the Council's website at least five working days before the meeting, and minutes once they are published. Dates of the meetings are available here: https://colchester.cmis.uk.com/colchester/MeetingCalendar.aspx.

Occasionally certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive information or details concerning an individual have to be considered in private. When this is the case an announcement will be made, the live broadcast will end and the meeting will be moved to consider in private.

Have Your Say!

The Council welcomes contributions and representations from members of the public at most public meetings. Planning Committee meetings, other than in exceptional circumstances, are subject to one representation in opposition and one representation in support of each application. Representations can be a statement or questions of no longer than three minutes when spoken (maximum 500 words) submitted by noon on the working day before the meeting date. Please register by emailing <u>democratic.services@colchester.gov.uk</u>

In addition a written copy of the representation will need to be supplied for use in the event of unforeseen technical difficulties preventing participation at the meeting itself.

If you would like to speak at a meeting and need to find out more, please refer to the Have Your Say! arrangements here:

https://colchester.cmis.uk.com/colchester/HaveYourSay/HYSPlanning.aspx.

### COLCHESTER BOROUGH COUNCIL Planning Committee Thursday, 04 March 2021 at 18:00

#### The Planning Committee Members are:

Councillor Cyril Liddy Councillor Lyn Barton Councillor Helen Chuah Councillor Pauline Hazell Councillor Brian Jarvis Councillor Derek Loveland Councillor Jackie Maclean Councillor Philip Oxford Councillor Martyn Warnes Chairman Deputy Chairman

#### The Planning Committee Substitute Members are:

All members of the Council who are not members of this committee and who have undertaken the required planning skills workshop training:-

Councillors:

- Christopher Arnold Nigel Chapman Robert Davidson Dave Harris Sue Lissimore Beverley Oxford Lesley Scott-Boutell Tim Young
- Kevin Bentley Peter Chillingworth Paul Dundas Theresa Higgins A. Luxford Vaughan Gerard Oxford Lorcan Whitehead
- Tina Bourne Nick Cope Andrew Ellis Mike Hogg Sam McCarthy Chris Pearson Dennis Willetts
- Roger Buston Simon Crow Adam Fox Mike Lilley Patricia Moore Lee Scordis Julie Young

### AGENDA THE LIST OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED AT THE MEETING (Part A - open to the public)

#### Please note that Agenda items 1 to 6 are normally dealt with briefly.

An Amendment Sheet is published on the Council's website by 4:30pm on the day before the meeting and is available to view at the bottom of the relevant Planning Committee webpage. Please note that any further information for the Committee to consider must be received no later than 5pm two days before the meeting in order for it to be included on the Amendment Sheet. With the exception of a petition, no written or photographic material can be presented to the Committee during the meeting.

#### Live Broadcast

Please follow this link to watch the meeting live on YouTube:

#### (107) ColchesterCBC - YouTube

#### 1 Welcome and Announcements (Virtual Meetings)

The Chairman will welcome members of the public and Councillors to the meeting and remind those participating to mute their

microphones when not talking. The Chairman will invite all Councillors and Officers participating in the meeting to introduce themselves. The Chairman will, at regular intervals, ask Councillors to indicate if they wish to speak or ask a question and Councillors will be invited to speak in turn by the Chairman. A vote on each item of business will be taken by roll call of each Councillor and the outcome of each vote will be confirmed by the Democratic Services Officer.

#### 2 Substitutions

Councillors will be asked to say if they are attending on behalf of a Committee member who is absent.

#### 3 Urgent Items

The Chairman will announce if there is any item not on the published agenda which will be considered because it is urgent and will explain the reason for the urgency.

#### 4 Declarations of Interest

Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the agenda about which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest which would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the item or participating in any vote upon the item, or any other pecuniary interest or non-pecuniary interest.

#### 5 Have Your Say! (Virtual Planning Meetings)

At meetings of the Planning Committee, members of the public may make representations to the Committee members. These Have Your Say! arrangements will allow for one person to make representations in opposition and one person to make representations in support of each planning application. Each representation will be for no longer than three minutes (500 words). Members of the public may register their wish to address the Committee members by registering by 12 noon on the working day before the meeting date. In addition, a written copy of the representation will need to be supplied for use in the event of unforeseen technical difficulties preventing participation at the meeting itself. The Chairman will invite members of the public to make their representations at the start of the meeting. These speaking arrangements do not apply to councillors who are not members of the Committee who may make representations of no longer than five minutes each.

These speaking provisions do not apply to applications which have been subject to the Deferral and Recommendation Overturn Procedure (DROP).

#### 6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The Committee are asked to confirm that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2021 are a correct record.

#### 7 Planning Applications

When the members of the Committee consider the planning applications listed below, they may decide to agree, all at the same time, the recommendations in the reports for any applications which 7 - 12

no member of the Committee or member of the public wishes to address the Committee.

# 7.1 **201048 Mersea Caravan Centre, Waldegraves** 13 - 34 Holiday Park,West Mersea

Use of the site for the stationing of 57 No. static caravans in lieu of 117 caravan pitches and associated landscaping and access works.

#### 8 Applications determined in accordance with Officer Scheme of 35 - 36 Delegation

See report by the Assistant Director, Place and Client Services giving details of the applications which have been determined since the last meeting in accordance with the revised scheme of delegation agreed at the Committee's meeting on 21 January 2021

#### 9 Exclusion of the Public (not Scrutiny or Executive)

In accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 to exclude the public, including the press, from the meeting so that any items containing exempt information (for example confidential personal, financial or legal advice), in Part B of this agenda (printed on yellow paper) can be decided. (Exempt information is defined in Section 100I and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972).

# Part B (not open to the public including the press)

## **Planning Committee**

## Thursday, 04 February 2021

Attendees:	Councillor Lyn Barton, Councillor Helen Chuah, Councillor Pauline Hazell, Councillor Brian Jarvis, Councillor Cyril Liddy, Councillor Derek Loveland, Councillor Jackie Maclean, Councillor Martyn Warnes
Apologies:	Councillor Philip Oxford
Substitutes:	Councillor Gerard Oxford (for Councillor Philip Oxford)

#### 824 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2021 be confirmed as a correct record.

#### 825 202692 19 Shears Crescent, West Mersea

The Committee considered an application for Demolition of single garage and erection of a single and two storey side extension and single storey front and side extension with balcony (retrospective).

The Committee had before it a report in which information about the application was set out.

The Committee members had been provided with films and photographs of the site taken by the Senior Planning Officer to assist in their assessment of the impact and suitability of the proposals.

Mr Hicks addressed the Committee pursuant to the provisions of Planning Committee Procedure Rule 8 in opposition to the application.

Mr Hicks stated that the applicant had signed declarations that there were no trees within falling distance of the proposal but had since offered to remove the trees that were affected if requested, even though the trees in question were not the applicant's to remove.

The single and two storey extensions were not on existing hardstanding as the original base had been a garage. Foundations would have been required and this would have necessitated replacing clay with concrete. It was highlighted that the area was a High Risk Surface Water Flood Zone and a flood survey had been needed but the builder did not research or commission one. Residents felt that increases in surface water may be exacerbated through concrete foundations preventing the flow of ground and surface water.

The Appeal had found that an increase in size would affect the character of the street and appear over dominant. However, the build that had taken place was overbuild and with the exception of the staircase followed the refused plan, increasing the footprint. It was pointed out that in all other properties in Shears Crescent no balconies were forward of the original building line, they had been built over garages. The balcony proposed by the applicant would be nearly double the size at 27 square metres.

Mr Hicks referred to the comments of West Mersea Town Council regarding size, character, and neighbour's aspect. He also stressed that the current stage of the build was irrelevant and that the applicant had chosen to build off plan. Residents could see no merit in granting permission.

Robert Pomery addressed the Committee pursuant to the provisions of Planning Committee Procedure Rule 8 in support of the application reminding members of the appeal decision in relation to the previous proposals for the site.

Mr Pomery set out the events that had led to the Committee report: permission was granted for extensions in 2017, an application was then made to increase the size of part of the approved scheme, which was refused. The applicant appealed and the appeal was dismissed. Following the appeal, work began to build the approved scheme, which had advanced, when a Planning Enforcement Officer visited the site to assess what was being built. Measurements were taken and it was discovered that some parts of the extensions were slightly smaller than approved plans and some parts slightly larger. These discrepancies ranged between 50mm (2in) and 200mm (7.8in).

Ordinarily, this level of variation might be expected on a building project, it is unlikely that when built, development matches precisely the dimensions on a planning drawing. The applicant was asked by enforcement to submit a Non Material amendment, a measure designed to regularise such minor changes to planning permissions. This he did, but Officers considered the modest variation to be a material increase and insisted a planning application was made to regularise the small discrepancies. The application made detailed the changes with a plan submitted, showing what had been approved, what had been built and what had been dismissed at appeal. It is evident from this plan that what had been built is only slightly different to what had no discernible impact on the street or on neighbouring outlook. It was not the case that the applicant had simply built the scheme that the Inspector dismissed, the difference between the appeal scheme and what has been built was significant and clearly illustrated on the plan submitted.

The applicant accepted that one of the questions on the application form involving neighbouring trees was incorrectly answered, that has been rectified. The extensions do not impact trees any more than the hardstanding that was in place previously. There was no evidence which demonstrates any harm to trees, the trees concerned were garden leylandii, with no public amenity value, so were not material to planning considerations. The built extensions had not removed a soak-away from the site, the surface water drainage system on the site had not changed, new drainage installed had been passed under Building Regulations. There was no evidence that demonstrated that the works had led to an increase in flooding.

The applicant had acted properly throughout and done what the Council had asked of him at every step. It was surprising that an extension which was just one brick longer (200mm) than it should be, had to come before Committee.

Councillor Moore attended and with the consent of the Chair addressed the Committee speaking on behalf of the residents.

Councillor Moore reminded the Committee of the sequence of applications; the 2017 application had contained inaccuracies with no mention of trees or flood zone as a result no mitigating measures were required. Mersea Town Council had recommended refusal. 191956 was lodged in 2019 for a larger build and refused by Colchester Borough Council and refused on appeal on grounds of scale including that the balcony appeared dominant within the street scene and noted that other balconies on properties in the street were to scale and built over existing garages. It would have been detrimental to character of the dwelling and the area; the height of the screening to the balcony would have an overbearing impact and be harmful to living conditions of the neighbours. These reasons for refusal were vital to understanding why this retrospective application should not be approved. The Inspector had pointed out that this was contrary to DP1 and UR2.

The retrospective application's build so far was ·68 sq m less than the refused application and was 18% larger than the 2017 permission. It was vital that the 2017 permission was not exceeded in any way. The balustrade which was essential for the privacy of neighbours was larger and obtrusive. The height of screening to the balcony and its overall size impacted neighbours affording no privacy and overlooking neighbouring bedroom windows at the north end of the balcony. There was a condition that all windows and doors be white but this had only been partially met.

Surface water flooding was an issue (as shown in Essex County Council's map) as the properties sat in the catchment area for streams that once fed the boating lake. Building over the natural soakaway in the garden led to flooding and both the applicant's and neighbour's garden have surface water currently. The roots of the trees to the side of 19 Shears Crescent had been damaged by building works. Only one parking space was provided as the garage was too small for a modern car and the owner's vehicles have been left in the street blocking the turning point.

This overbuild should not be condoned .

Eleanor Moss, Senior Planning Officer, presented the report and assisted the Committee in its deliberations.

The Senior Planning Officer shared a presentation with members including plans from previous applications and for the current proposal that illustrated the difference between the 2017 application and the retrospective application.

She explained that the screening for the balcony would be 1.8 metres in height along the side and rear with frosted glazing to protect privacy.

The proposal/build was approximately three metres from the shared boundary of no.19. There was a minor increase in the size of the build that was material but it was considered that this had minimum impact, it was not severe with variations mostly of 20 centimetres and 15 centimetres.

The Arboricultural Officer had no comments and the conifer trees were situated bordering the rear of the site; impact on them was considered to be minimal.

The Senior Planning Officer clarified that in terms of flood risk and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Flood Zone Areas 1 and of less than a hectare in size do not require a Flood Risk Assessment and the site measures less than a hectare. Current weather conditions had meant that many properties and areas had surface water at the present time.

On balance approval with conditions outlined in the report was recommended.

The Committee felt the retrospective nature of the application was regrettable and recognised that this had given rise to neighbours' unease and concerns. However it was acknowledged that planning considerations within the Committee's remit were the issues to be considered, looking at the differences between the scheme approved in 2017 and current changes proposed.

Some concern was expressed over the build being disproportionate and overbearing, and whether, given the curtilage. it would be out of keeping with the area. The size and height of the balcony in particular would impact others. Policies DP1, DP20 and UR2 were referenced.

Clarification on the issue of flooding and drainage was requested and whether the trees were under a Tree Protection Order.

The issue of adequate parking was raised and damage to the pavements when there was parking on the street.

The Senior Planning Officer clarified that there was no Tree Protection Order in place.

Concerns about the soakaway/drainage and removal of earth were not planning considerations but were issues for Building Control and in this instance a private Building Control Inspector had been used.

She reconfirmed that the side and rear screening on the balcony would be 1.8 metres.

Parking remained as before with a garage and on the drive, parking on the highway was legal and any issue with pavement being broken up would be a Highways matter

Simon Cairns, Development Manager re-iterated that as the site was in Flood Risk Area - Zone 1 (lowest category) no assessment had been needed and would not normally have been undertaken for a domestic extension. He reminded the Committee that the plans had shown the footprint of the proposal and the difference between the extant permission; the drawings showed very minor differences.

The Development Manager assured the Committee that Building Control matters were outside Planning's remit and that an Approved Building Control Inspector was dealing with this.

RESOLVED (SIX voted FOR, THREE voted AGAINST)

that the application be approved subject to the conditions contained in the report.



The Ordnance Survey map data included within this publication is provided by Colchester Borough Council of Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester CO3 3WG under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to act as a planning authority. Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey map data for their own use. This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller Of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Crown Copyright 100023706 2017

#### Item No: 7.1

Application:	201048
Applicant:	Waldegraves Holiday Park
Agent:	Mrs Fiona Bradley, Attwells
Proposal:	Use of the site for the stationing of 57 No. static caravans in lieu of 117 caravan pitches and associated landscaping and access works.
Location:	Mersea Caravan Centre, Waldegraves Farm Holiday Park, Waldegraves Lane, West Mersea, Colchester, CO5 8SE
	Mersea & Pyefleet John Miles
Recommendation:	Approval

#### **1.0** Reason for Referral to the Planning Committee

1.1 This application is referred to the Planning Committee due to call in by Councilor Moore on the following basis:

This application wishes to replace touring caravan pitches with static caravans/homes. I oppose this because there is a shortage of touring sites on Mersea Island but far more statics and lodges than the infrastructure can happily accommodate. I am also concerned that the presence of statics will turn that grassy area into a 'brown field' site thereby losing it as a green open space.

#### 2.0 Synopsis

- 2.1 The key issue for consideration is the impact that the change in type of unit and the reduction in unit numbers, may have on the surrounding area, including with regards to landscape and ecological impacts.
- 2.2 The use of the site is well established and the change in the type of unit is anticipated to have a neutral impact on the surrounding area, subject to appropriate conditions and an appropriate financial contribution towards offsite ecological mitigation being secured and the proposal is found to be in accord with adopted policy.
- 2.2 The application is subsequently recommended for approval, subject to conditions and a proportionate financial contribution to the Essex Coast RAMS being secured.

#### 3.0 Site Description and Context

- 3.1 The application site is located to the south of Waldegraves Lane and forms part of the wider Waldegraves Holiday Park site. Access to the site is via Waldegraves Lane, which leads south east from the junction with East Road and Chapmans Lane.
- 3.2 The site itself comprises a large field, with an area of trees of mixed species to the north, hedgerows to the west, south and east, and a further row of trees to the east, of mixed species.
- 3.3 Beyond the north of the site is Waldegraves Business park, while beyond the site to the west, south and east is the wider Waldegraves Holiday Park site.

#### 4.0 Description of the Proposal

4.1 The application seeks planning permission for the use of the application site for the stationing of a maximum 57 static holiday caravans within the existing caravan park, in lieu of touring caravans.

#### 5.0 Land Use Allocation

5.1 The application site is allocated as a caravan site within the adopted Local Plan.

#### 6.0 Relevant Planning History

6.1 The wider Waldegraves Holiday Park has an extensive planning history. Of relevance is application 171181, which sought planning permission for a similar proposal to that considered here. This application was withdrawn at the time on the advice of the council, owing to discrepancies between the number of caravans detailed in the application, the site license and previous planning applications. Application 182813 was subsequently made, and a lawful development certificate was granted, regularising the use of the wider site for – amongst other things – the stationing of 264 static caravans and as touring fields to accommodate 298 pitches for touring caravans and motorhomes.

#### 7.0 Principal Policies

- 7.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) must be taken into account in planning decisions and is a material consideration, setting out national planning policy. Colchester's Development Plan is in accordance with these national policies and is made up of several documents as follows below.
- 7.2 The adopted Colchester Borough Core Strategy (adopted 2008, reviewed 2014) contains local strategic policies. Particular to this application, the following policies are most relevant:

SD1 - Sustainable Development Locations
UR2 - Built Design and Character
ENV1 - Environment
ENV2 - Rural Communities
ER1 - Energy, Resources, Waste, Water and Recycling

7.3 The adopted Colchester Borough Development Policies (adopted 2010, reviewed 2014) sets out policies that apply to new development. Specific to this application are policies:

DP1 Design and Amenity DP10 Tourism, Leisure and Culture DP14 Historic Environment Assets DP19 Parking Standards DP20 Flood Risk and Management of Surface Water Drainage DP23 Coastal Areas

7.4 Regulation 14 Pre-Submission Consultation on the Draft West Mersea Neighbourhood Plan concluded in January 2021. Whilst good progress is being made on the plan, considering its stage of preparation the plan can be afforded

limited weight in the context of the Development Plan and the determination of applications.

7.5 Submission Colchester Borough Local Plan 2017-2033: The Council is developing a new Local Plan that has been submitted to the Planning Inspectorate (October 2017).

Paragraph 48 of the Framework states that decision makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:

- 1. The stage of preparation of the emerging plan;
- 2. The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies in the emerging plan; and
- 3. The degree of consistency of relevant policies to the policies in the Framework.

Colchester Council, by decision at the meeting of Full Council on Monday 1 February 2021, has formally adopted the Colchester Borough Local Plan 2013-2033: North Essex Authorities' Shared Strategic Section 1 Plan.

The Emerging Local Plan Section 2 is at an advanced stage and is, therefore, considered to carry some weight in the consideration of the application, but as it is yet to undergo a full and final examination, it is not considered to outweigh the material considerations assessed above in accordance with up-to-date planning policies and the NPPF.

7.6 Regard should also be given to the following adopted Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD):

EPOA Vehicle Parking Standards Managing Archaeology in Development.

#### 8.0 Consultations

- 8.1 The stakeholders who have been consulted and who have given consultation responses are as set out below. More information may be set out on our website.
- 8.2 The Councils Landscape Advisor made the following comments:

The landscape content/aspect of the strategic proposals lodged on 14/10/20 under drawing(s) 8110.F03.A would appear satisfactory.

In conclusion; there are no objections to this application on landscape grounds.

A condition relating to the implementation of a scheme of hard and soft landscaping in accordance with details to be submitted and agreed with the Local Planning Authority is also recommended. The imposition of such a condition has been agreed.

8.3 Environmental Protection have no objections but recommended a condition limiting the hours of work (construction and demolition) and the submission of details on the method of foul drainage.

8.4 The Council's Arboricultural Officer made the following comments:

I am in agreement with the tree report provided.

The proposal requires the removal of small hedges throughout the site. These are non-native and could be easily replaced if deemed important by the landscape officer. In conclusion, I am satisfied with the Arboricultural content of the proposal subject to the above.

Agreement to the landscape aspect of the application subject to condition: Make the tree report an approved document.

8.5 The Lead Local Flood Authority have made the following comments:

Having reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment and the associated documents which accompanied the planning application, we do not object to the granting of planning permission based on the [imposition of the conditions recommended].

The Lead Local Flood Authority have requested the imposition of four conditions: one relating to the production and implementation of a detailed surface water drainage scheme; one the production and implementation of an agreed scheme to minimise the risk of offsite flooding caused by surface water run-off and groundwater during construction works and prevent pollution; one the production of a maintenance plan detailing the maintenance arrangements including who is responsible for different elements of the surface water drainage system and the maintenance activities/frequencies; and one relating to maintaining yearly logs of maintenance which should be carried out in accordance with any approved maintenance plan. The imposition of these conditions have been agreed with the applicant.

8.6 Anglian Water:

Anglian Water have advised their records show no assets owned by Anglian Water within the site boundary and that foul drainage for the development is in the catchment of Mersea Water Recycling Centre that will have available capacity for these flows. Anglian Water confirmed that they have no objections subject to a condition covering the production, approval and implementation of a detailed on-site foul water drainage scheme. The imposition of such a condition has again been agreed with the applicant.

8.7 The Environment Agency have made the following comments:

Thank you for re-consulting us on the above application. We have reviewed the documents as submitted and can confirm that we are able to remove our holding objection.

The document titled 'Ecology report' on the planning portal confirms that the proposed static caravans will be connected to an existing mains drainage system. We are satisfied with the foul drainage plans and are able to remove our objection on this basis.

8.8 Natural England

No Objection – Subject to appropriate mitigation being secured.

#### 9.0 Parish Council Response

9.1 The Parish Council have objected to the proposed development raising the following issues:

- This is a significant plan at a time when the Local Plan has not been finalised. - Loss of those touring sites is a risk to the island because it could result in those caravans parking up in car parks if they cannot get on established sites.

Supplementary representation was also received raising the following matters:

- Progression of the Emerging Local Plan, specifically policy SS12C.
- Reduction in the number of touring pitches, contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan
- Conflicting with increasing demand for touring sites.
- The proposal would provide second homes that would further increase the pressure on local services.
- Aspects of the proposal are unclear.

#### **10.0 Representations from Notified Parties**

- 10.1 The application resulted in four letters of objection from members of the public. The full text of all of the representations received is available to view on the Council's website. However, a summary of the material considerations is given below:
  - The visual impact of the proposal
  - Impact on tourism and the economy
  - Potential future use of the site
  - Impact on wildlife and the environment
  - Lack of appropriate infrastructure

#### **11.0 Parking Provision**

11.1 The proposal includes one parking space per unit. While minimum standards for the proposed use are not explicitly set in the EPOA Parking Standards document the provisions proposed are considered appropriate in this instance. Additional car parking would also be available through the use of the large car parking area, which is located within the wider holiday park, to the south of the application site.

#### 12.0 Accessibility

12.1 The proposal allows for flexibility in the design of individual units and as such units could be deigned to meet the varying needs of individual users. The scheme complies with the provision of the Equalities Act and complies with DP17 which covers accessibility and access.

#### 13.0 Open Space Provisions

13.1 The proposal does not include, nor is it required by policy to make any open space provisions.

#### 14.0 Air Quality

14.1 The site is outside of any Air Quality Management Area and will not generate significant impacts upon the zones.

#### 15.0 Planning Obligations

15.1 As a "Major" application by virtue of the site area, there was a requirement for this proposal to be considered by the Development Team. No contributions were requested from any parties.

#### 16.0 Report

- 16.1 The main issues in this case are:
  - The Principle of Development
  - Design, Layout and Landscape impact
  - Ecology and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)/Appropriate Assessment (AA)
  - Transport and highways safety
  - Residential Amenity
  - Flood Risk
  - Occupation
  - Climate Emergency
  - Archaeology

#### 16.2 **Principle**

- 16.3 The application site forms part of an existing well established camping and caravan site, which is allocated as such in the adopted Local Plan. Policy DP10 provides support for visitor accommodation, including static caravans, in 'suitable locations', with Waldegraves Holiday Park identified as one such location within the adopted Local Plan. While the site is within the designated coastal protection belt the proposal would not result in any development along the undeveloped section of the coast and the coastal location is considered justified. It is also noted that compliance with Core Strategy and Development Policies DP21 (Nature Conservation) and DP23 (Coastal Areas) were considered further at the stage at which Waldegraves Holiday Park was allocated in the adopted local plan, with development (in accordance with Policy DP10) at Waldegrave Holiday Park held to accord specifically with these policy requirements.
- 16.4 While Part 2 of the Emerging Local Plan is not yet adopted, following the adoption of Part 1 and with Part 2 at an advanced stage it is considered to carry some weight. With regards to the Emerging Local Plan, Policy DM5 provides support for the development of new and extended visitor accommodation, including static caravans, where such development is located in suitable areas, subject to minimising their impact on neighbouring areas. In addition, Policy SS12c provides general support for development proposals at caravan parks on Mersea Island, including change of use, intensification of an existing use, or change in activities on site.
- 16.5 As Discussed, West Mersea Neighbourhood Plan is currently at a draft stage with regulation 14 pre-submission consultation and publicity concluding in January of this year. In terms of policies of the draft Neighbourhood Plan of particular relevance is Policy WM25 which concerns development proposals at existing caravan parks. While this policy is generally supportive of changes of use, intensification of existing uses and change in activities at existing caravan parks (subject to certain criteria being met) it is noted that this policy is not supportive of the removal of touring caravan sites to be replaced by static caravan sites. At this stage of preparation, the plan is however held to have limited weight, not least given the remaining stages of the adoption process and the possibility for future amendments. It is not considered the aforementioned draft Neighbourhood Plan policy outweighs the in-principle support for the proposal under adopted policy.
- 16.6 Taking into account the established use of the site and the background of policy support with regard to adopted local plan policy and emerging local plan policy the use of the site for the proposed purposes of stationing static caravans for holiday use is therefore considered acceptable in principle.

#### 16.7 Design, Layout and Landscape impact

- 16.8 Policy ENV1 of the Core Strategy seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment, countryside and coastline. Development Plan Policy DP23 requires development within the Coastal Protection Belt to, inter alia, conserve the landscape character of the coast. Development Plan Policy DP1 also requires that development proposals must respect and enhance the character of the site, context and surroundings in terms of (inter alia) its landscape setting, while Development Plan Policy DP10 requires development such as that proposed to demonstrate it is compatible with the rural character of the surrounding area and avoid causing undue harm to the open nature of the countryside or designated sites
- 16.9 Permission is sought for the use of the site for the stationing of 57 static caravans. The application seeks to allow flexibility in the position and design of the proposed units. This is considered acceptable on the basis that all units remain within the application site and fall within the definition of a caravan, both of which can be ensured by condition, as can control on the number of units. These details are also largely controlled by the Caravan Act and associated licencing legislation.
- 16.10 It is recognised that while the nature of the use of the site would not be significantly altered, the proposed static caravans do pose the potential for a greater impact on the surrounding landscape, particularly due to their relative permanence, compared to static caravans.
- 16.11 The site is however largely defined by existing established hedgerows, with additionally a planting belt to the north of the site. Protection of existing notable natural features is detailed in an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) submitted in support of the application. Following comments from the Council's Landscape Advisor the proposals have also been revised to include a linear feature of trees along the perimeter of the southern and western boundary to enhance the site's landscape character and help filter views of the site from nearby Public Rights of Way, ensuring public amenity and landscape character is preserved. An indicative landscape Advisor in agreement with the application's landscape content. The finer details of the scheme of hard and soft landscaping can be agreed by condition.
- 16.12 Taking the above factors into consideration, subject to appropriate conditions, the proposal is held to conserve the surrounding area's existing landscape character and the proposal is in accord with policies ENV1, DP1, DP10 and DP23 in this regard.

# 16.13 Ecology and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) /Appropriate Assessment (AA)

- 16.14 Core Strategy Policy ENV1 and Development Policy DP21 seek to conserve or enhance biodiversity of the Borough. The NPPF also states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts on biodiversity. Emerging Local Plan Policy DM5 and SS12C states that proposals (for tourism and leisure development) that are likely to have an adverse impact on the integrity of European sites will not be supported and that Development proposals at caravan parks on Mersea Island in particular should help protect the integrity of European sites and minimise disturbance to migratory or over wintering birds using the sites .
- 16.15 The proposal has been assessed in line with the NPPF and Natural England Standing Advice. The site is not considered to encompass suitable habitat for protected species, nor is the proposal considered likely to have a direct impact upon protected species at site level.
- 16.16 It is necessary to assess the application in accordance with the Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). Under the Habitats Regulations, a development which is likely to have a significant effect or an adverse effect (alone or in combination) on a Special Protection Area must provide mitigation or otherwise must satisfy the tests of demonstrating 'no alternatives' and 'reasons of overriding public interest'.
- 16.17 While the proposal does not concern a residential caravan site and as such the Essex Coast Recreational disturbance Avoidance Mitigation Strategy (RAMS) does not by default apply to the proposal, applications involving tourist accommodation (including holiday caravans and campsites) can still potentially have recreational disturbance impacts (and other impacts) on designated sites.
- 16.18 The site is in close proximity to the Colne Estuary Special Protection Area (SPA), with the Colne Estuary also listed as a Ramsar site and a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). These designated sites are located around 250 metres to the south-west of the application site. The whole of Colchester Borough Council is also within the zone of influence (ZoI) for the Essex Coast RAMS and consideration must also be given to the potential for impacts upon the interest features of other Habitat Sites identified in the Essex Coast RAMS [Blackwater Estuary SPA and Ramsar site, Dengie SPA and Ramsar site, Stour and Orwell Estuaries SPA and Ramsar site (south shore) and Essex Estuaries SAC].
- 16.19 The proposal is considered to have the potential to have an impact upon the features of interest of the aforementioned Habitat sites through increased recreational pressure, when considered either alone or in-combination with other plans and projects.
- 16.20 While the static caravans are proposed to be sited on a land currently used as sites for touring caravans and there are anticipated to be a significant

reduction in people staying at the site at any one time under the proposed use compared to the existing use during the summer, during the winter season the proposed use is anticipated to result in an increase in the number of people visiting the site.

- 16.21 The proposal is therefore considered likely to have a significant effect on the interests features of the aforementioned Habitat sites through increased recreation pressure when considered in-combination with other plans and projects, without appropriate mitigation. Taking this into account and the circumstances of the case, it is also considered that the Essex Coast RAMS is relevant in this instance and an Appropriate Assessment (AA) is also required. An AA has been undertaken (supported by the submitted Ecological Report) and forms part of the Council's planning record, available to view on the Council's Website.
- 16.22 The AA assessment concluded that through a combination of existing onsite mitigation measures across the wider Waldegraves Holiday Park Site and a financial contribution to the Essex Coast Rams as off-site mitigation, the scheme would be acceptable in terms of associated recreational pressure. The suggested contribution has been derived from the standard RAMS tariff but adjusted to take into account the specifics of the proposed use, as outlined in the submitted ecological report.
- 16.23 Taking into account the information provided, including that the site will be served by existing mains sewage, it is not considered the proposal is likely to have a significant effect upon the interest features of European sites through other issues such as water quality, water resources, air quality, loss of offsite functional habitat and it is considered these matters are not required to be subject to further consideration under an appropriate assessment.
- 16.24 Natural England have been consulted on the proposed development and the appropriate assessment undertaken, with Natural England in their role as a statutory consultee advising they concur with the conclusions drawn under the appropriate assessment made. Natural England confirm they have no objections to the proposed development subject to the suggested contribution to the Essex Coast RAMS being secured. Delegated Authority is sought to oversee the securing of such a contribution via an appropriate mechanism.
- 16.25 Emerging Policy SS12c requires development proposals at Mersea Island Caravan Parks to (inter alia) have adequate waste water treatment and sewage infrastructure capacity to serve the caravan park and to protect the EU designated coastal bathing water quality and to help meet EU Water Framework Directive requirements. As discussed, the development is proposed to be served by an existing mains sewage connection, with Anglia Water confirming the site is in the catchment of West Mersea Water Recycling Centre which will have available capacity for the anticipated flows. Exact details on the foul drainage scheme and its implementation are proposed to be controlled by way of condition, with such a condition agreed.

16.26 Taking the above factors into consideration subject to a proportionate financial contribution to the Essex Coast RAMS being secured the proposal will not have an adverse impact on designated sites nor will the proposal otherwise be harmful to biodiversity or the natural environment more generally.

#### 16.27 Transport and highways safety

- 16.28 Core Strategy policy TA1 seeks to improve accessibility and change travel behaviour and encourages development within highly accessible locations to reduce the need to travel. Core Strategy Policy TA2 promotes walking and cycling as an integral part of sustainable means of transport. Policy TA4 seeks to manage the demand for car use. Development Policy DP17 states that all developments should seek to enhance accessibility for sustainable modes of transport by giving priority to pedestrians, cycling and public transport access. Paragraph 109 of the NPPF confirms development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. Policy TA5 of the Core Strategy refers to parking and states that development proposals should manage parking to accord with the accessibility of the location and to ensure people friendly street environments. Policy DP19 states that the Council will refer developers to the Essex Planning Officers Association (EPOA) Vehicle Parking Standards which is an adopted SPD (November 2009).
- 16.29 The proposed development is to make use of the site's existing and established access from Waldegraves Lane. It is anticipated that the proposed development may actually reduce associated vehicle movements at certain times of year and will likely reduce the number of towing vehicles using the access and surrounding highway network. Notwithstanding this the existing access is considered suitable to accommodate the proposed developments associated vehicle movements, as is the surrounding highway network, with it should be noted that the Highway Authority does not raise any concerns with regards to the proposals.
- 16.30 It is proposed for each holiday caravan to be served by one parking space, with this considered a suitable level of provisions. Whilst it is recognised a majority of visitors are likely to reach the site by private vehicles the site is linked to West Mersea via a public footpath, with opportunities also existing for visitors to travel around the area by bike and using local bus services which can be accessed at the junction of East Road, Waldegraves Lane and Chapmans Lane, which provide sustainable means of accessing the facilities/attractions of the wider borough.

#### 16.31 Residential Amenity

- 16.32 Development Policy DP1 states that all development must be designed to a high standard and avoid unacceptable impacts on amenity. This includes protecting existing public and residential amenity, particularly with regard to privacy, overlooking, security, noise and disturbance, pollution (including light and odour pollution), daylight and sunlight. Development Policy DP10 also requires development relating to tourism and leisure specifically to not cause significant harm to the amenity of people living and working nearby.
- 16.33 Notwithstanding the existing lawful use of the site, the proposed use is not in itself anticipated to give rise to any adverse impact on residential amenity. The nearest dwelling is over 200 metres from the site and taking into account the distance between this neighbouring dwelling and any other surrounding dwellings, and the application site, in addition to the intervening natural features and the nature of the site's proposed use, there are no concerns the proposed use will adversely impact the level of amenity enjoyed by the occupants of nearby dwellings, including in terms of privacy, security, noise or disturbance.

#### 16.34 Flood Risk

- 16.35 Core Strategy policy ENV1 seeks to direct development away from areas of flood risk (both fluvial and coastal), towards sites with the lowest risk from flooding. Development Policy DP20 seeks to promote flood mitigation and defence measures as well as the use of appropriate sustainable drainage. Emerging Local Plan Policy SS12c requires (inter alia) development proposals at caravan parks on Mersea Island to be supported by a Site Specific Flood Risk Assessment. The NPPF also requires a detailed flood risk assessment (FRA) to be produced for all development located within a flood zone and/or sites that are greater than 1 hectare.
- 16.36 A Flood Risk and SUDs assessment have been submitted in support of the application. The site is within Flood Zone 1 and the site is at a low risk of fluvial or tidal flooding and in accordance with the Technical Guidance that accompanies the NPPF, it is consequently suitable for all types of development from a flood risk perspective.
- 16.37 Whilst other areas of the wider Waldegraves Site are at a greater risk of flooding than the application site these are matters that have been considered under the original permissions for the wider site, with it also understood that as part of the site's license conditions are imposed in respect of flood risk, flood warning and flood emergency action plans.
- 16.38 The proposed development itself is not considered to increase the flood risk for occupants of the site or otherwise be unsuitable in terms of flood risk. The Environment Agency also have no objections to the proposal. In addition to this the proposed development will not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere and provides opportunities for the incorporation of a sustainable urban drainage scheme, with exact details to be controlled by

way of conditions - in the form of those recommended by Essex County Council in their role as Lead Local Flood Authority.

#### 16.39 Occupation

- 16.40 Development Plan Policy DP10 and Emerging Local Plan Policy DM5 states that in locations where residential uses would be inappropriate, developments of visitor accommodation will be limited to holiday use only and/or certain periods of the year in order to prevent permanent or longterm occupation. Emerging Local Plan policy SS12c also states permission will not be granted for caravans or chalets at the caravan parks on Mersea Island to be used as permanent residences.
- 16.41 Concerns have been raised in representations received regarding the use of the units as permanent residences. However, it should be noted that this is not what has been applied for within this application and use of the site will be safeguarded by appropriate conditions in accordance with adopted policy. Further controls also exist with regard to the site's license.

#### 16.42 Climate Emergency

- 16.43 The Council has declared a Climate Emergency and has committed to being carbon neutral by 2030.
- 16.44 The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development as defined in the National Planning Policy Framework. Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways. These are economic, social and environmental objectives.
- This report has taken into account the Climate Emergency and the 16.45 sustainable development objectives set out in the NPPF. Subject to the discussed mitigation the scheme will not have an adverse ecological impact and is also anticipated to reduce vehicle movements associated with the use of the site. Users of the site will be able to take advantage of the existing opportunities for the use of sustainable transport methods when holidaying at the site, including the public footpaths and bus routes in close proximity to the site which provide visitors access to West Mersea and the wider area. A scheme for the implementation of Electric Vehicle charging points is also to be agreed by way of condition, with this to help facilitate the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles. The proposed development is also sought pursuant to the continued operation of an established holiday park which attracts visitors to the area, with associated spending. Taking the above factors into consideration the application is held to represent sustainable development.

#### 16.46 Archaeology

- 16.47 Development Plan Policy DP14 states that development will not be permitted that will adversely affect important archaeological remains or have a negative impact on the historic environment. Core Strategy Policy ENV1 further requires that decisions safeguard (inter alia) the Borough's archaeology.
- 16.48 The proposal site is located within an area of archaeological interest, with the Council's Archaeological Advisor subsequently consulted on the proposal. While there are no grounds to consider refusal of permission in order to achieve preservation in situ of any important heritage assets, in light of the potential presence of heritage assets it has been recommended that a condition be imposed regarding the production of a Written Scheme of Investigation which will then be followed throughout the construction phase to ensure archaeological assets within the approved development boundary are safeguarded. The imposition of such a condition has been agreed with the applicant.

#### 17.0 Conclusion

17.1 To summarise, the use of the wider site for holiday accommodation is long established and the proposed use of the site is considered consistent with the site's wider use and in accord with adopted policy. Subject to provisions of the agreed financial contribution to the Essex Coast RAMS the proposal will not have an adverse impact on the nearby habitat sites and with a lack of wider harm identified and the proposal found to be in accordance with the provisions of the Adopted Local Plan, the Emerging Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework, the application is recommended for approval.

#### **18.0** Recommendation to the Committee

18.1 The Officer recommendation to the Committee is for:

APPROVAL of planning permission subject to a proportionate financial contribution to the Essex Coast RAMS being secured and the imposition of the following conditions:

#### 1) ZAA - Time Limit for Full Permissions

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

#### 2) Non-Standard Condition - Development to Accord with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the submitted Drawing Number 8110 F03 A 'Proposed Site Plan Option 3'(Dated February 2020) and 8449-D-AIA 'Prelim AIA'(Dated 05.11.20).

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the proposed development is carried out as approved and to safeguard the continuity of amenity afforded by existing trees and hedgerows.

#### 3) Non-Standard Condition – Landscaping

No part of the development shall be occupied until a scheme of hard and soft landscape works for the site has been submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include any significant changes in ground levels and also accurately identify positions and spread of all existing trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site, proposed planting, details of any hard surface finishes and external works, implementation of which shall comply with the recommendations set out in the relevant British Standards current at the time of submission. The approved landscape scheme shall be carried out in full prior to the end of the first planting and seeding season following the first occupation of the development or in such other phased arrangement as shall have previously been agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Any hard or soft landscape works which, within a period of 5 years of being implemented fail, are removed or seriously damaged or seriously diseased shall be replaced, like for like, in the next planting season with others of similar specification/size/species, unless the Local Planning Authority

agrees, in writing, to a variation of the previously approved details. Reason: In order to ensure that there is a sufficient landscaping scheme for the relatively small scale of this development where there are publicly visible areas to be laid out but there is insufficient detail within the submitted application.

#### 4) ZPD – Limits to hours of work

No demolition or construction work shall take outside of the following times;

Weekdays: 08:00-18:00 Saturdays: 08:00-13:00

Sundays and Bank Holidays: No working

Reason: To ensure that the construction phase of the development hereby permitted is not detrimental to the amenity of the area and/or nearby residents by reason of undue noise at unreasonable hours.

#### 5) Non-Standard Condition – SuDS 1/4

No works shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted to and certified as technically acceptable in writing suitably qualified person(s) or the Lead Local Flood Authority (ECC), the statutory consultee in relation to SuDS. The certificate shall thereafter be submitted by the developer to the Local Planning Authority as part of the developer's application to discharge the condition. No development shall commence until the detailed scheme has been approved in writing by the LPA. The approved scheme shall subsequently be implemented prior to occupation and should include but not be limited to:

• Limiting discharge rates to 8.2l/s for all storm

events up to and including the 1 in 100 year rate plus 40% allowance for climate change subject to agreement with the relevant third party. All relevant permissions to discharge from the site into any outfall should be demonstrated.

• Final modelling and calculations for all areas of the drainage system.

• Detailed engineering drawings of each component of the drainage scheme.

• A final drainage plan which details exceedance and conveyance routes, FFL and ground levels, and location and sizing of any drainage features.

• A written report summarising the final strategy and highlighting any minor changes to the approved strategy.

Reason: To prevent surface water flooding and to mitigate any environmental harm that may be caused to the local water environment.

#### 6) Non-Standard Condition – SuDS 2/4

No works shall take place until a scheme to minimise the risk of offsite flooding caused by surface water run-off and groundwater during construction works and prevent pollution has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented as approved.

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water from the site.

To ensure the effective operation of SuDS features over the lifetime of the development.

To provide mitigation of any environmental harm which may be caused to the local water environment

Failure to provide the above required information before commencement of works may result in a system being installed that is not sufficient to deal with surface water occurring during rainfall events and may lead to increased flood risk and pollution hazard from the site.

#### 7) Non-Standard Condition – SuDS 3/4

Prior to occupation a maintenance plan detailing the maintenance arrangements including who is responsible for different elements of the surface water drainage system and the maintenance activities/frequencies, has been submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Should any part be maintainable by a maintenance company, details of long term funding arrangements should be provided.

Reason: To ensure appropriate maintenance arrangements are put in place to enable the surface water drainage system to function as intended to ensure mitigation against flood risk. Failure to provide the above required information prior to occupation may result in the installation of a system that is not properly maintained and may increase flood risk or pollution hazard from the site. Prior to occupation a maintenance plan detailing the maintenance arrangements including who is responsible for different elements of the surface water drainage system and the maintenance activities/frequencies, has been submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Should any part be maintainable by a maintenance company, details of long term funding arrangements should be provided.

Reason: To ensure appropriate maintenance arrangements are put in place to enable the surface water drainage system to function as intended to ensure mitigation against flood risk. Failure to provide the above required information prior to occupation may result in the installation of a system that is not properly maintained and may increase flood risk or pollution hazard from the site.

#### 8) Non-Standard Condition – SuDS 4/4

The applicant or any successor in title must maintain yearly logs of maintenance which should be carried out in accordance with any approved Maintenance Plan. These must be available for inspection upon a request by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the SuDS are maintained for the lifetime of the development as outlined in any approved Maintenance Plan so that they continue to function as intended to ensure mitigation against flood risk.

#### 9) Non-Standard Condition – Archaeology

No works shall take place until the implementation of a programme of archaeological work has been secured, in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation that has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

The scheme shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; and:

a. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording.

b. The programme for post investigation assessment.

c. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording.

d. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the site investigation.

e. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site investigation.

f. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works.

The site investigation shall thereafter be completed prior to development, or in such other phased arrangement, as agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied or brought into use until the site investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved and the provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured.

Reason: To safeguard archaeological assets within the approved development boundary from impacts relating to any groundworks associated with the development scheme and to ensure the proper and timely investigation, recording, reporting and presentation of archaeological assets affected by this development, in accordance Adopted Development Policy DP14 (2010, Revised 2014) and the Colchester Borough Adopted Guidance titled Managing Archaeology in Development (2015).

#### 10)Non-Standard Condition – Foul Drainage

Prior to any works above slab level a scheme for on-site foul water drainage works, including connection point and discharge rate, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Prior to the occupation of any phase, the foul water drainage works relating to that phase must have been carried out in complete accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding.

#### 11)Non-Standard Condition – Limit on Numbers

No more than 57 static caravans shall be sited within the area outlined in red on the Location Plan submitted as part of this application.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the scope of this permission as this is the basis upon which the application has been submitted and subsequently determined and extension to the site would need to be considered on its own merits at such a time as it were to be proposed.

#### 12)Non-Standard Condition – Size of Units

All static caravans on the site hereby approved shall fall within the definition of a caravan as set out within The Caravan Sites Act 1968 (as amended), unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the scope of this permission and as this is the basis upon which the application has been submitted and subsequently determined and any larger units would need to be considered on their own merits at such a time as they were to be proposed.

#### 13)Non-Standard Condition – Holiday Use Only

The development hereby approved shall be used solely for the purposes of holiday accommodation and shall not be occupied as a sole or main place of residence. No caravan on the site shall be occupied between January 15th and February 15th in any year. The applicant shall keep a log of all the holiday lettings which shall be made available to the Local Planning Authority upon request. Reason: This is the basis upon which the application has been submitted and subsequently determined and any permanent residential dwelling use of the site would need to be considered at such a time as it were to be proposed, as this application was considered as being for holiday purposes in the interests of contributing to tourism and the economy of the area. The owners of the application site shall maintain a log of the occupation of all caravans at the site, including dates of occupation, occupiers names and home addresses. Said Log shall be made available for inspection by the LPA upon request.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the scope of this permission and to ensure the use of the caravans hereby approved as holiday accommodation as this is the basis upon which the application has been submitted and subsequently determined and any permanent residential use of the site would need to be considered at such a time as it were to be proposed, as this application was considered as being for holiday purposes in the interests of contributing to tourism and the economy of the area.

#### 14)Non-Standard Condition – Parking

Prior to the occupation of each unit hereby approved, one parking space with minimum dimensions  $2.9m \times 5.5m$  shall be made available for the occupants of the unit and shall be retained in this form at all times and shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking and turning of vehicles related to the use that unit.

Reason: To ensure that on-street parking of vehicles in the adjoining streets does not occur, in the interests of highway safety.

#### 15)Non-Standard Condition – EV Charging Points

Prior to the first occupation of the proposed development EV charging point infrastructure shall be provided to serve the proposed development, in accordance with a scheme which shall have previously been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Five EV charging points are to be provided as a minimum.

Reason: In the interests of sustainability and air quality by encouraging the use of ultra-low emission vehicles.

#### 16) Lighting

Any lighting of the development (including resultant sky glow, light trespass, source intensity and building luminance) shall fully comply with the figures and advice specified in the CBC External Artificial Lighting Planning Guidance Note for zone EZ2 RURAL, SMALL VILLAGE OR DARK URBAN AREAS.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area by preventing the undesirable, disruptive and disturbing effects of light pollution.

#### 19.0 Informatives

19.1 The following informatives are also recommended:

#### 1) Advisory Note on Construction & Demolition

The developer is referred to the attached advisory note *Advisory Notes for the Control of Pollution during Construction & Demolition Works* for the avoidance of pollution during the demolition and construction works. Should the applicant require any further guidance they should contact Environmental Control prior to the commencement of the works.

#### 2) Informative on Conditions Stating Prior to Commencement/Occupation

PLEASE NOTE that this permission contains a condition precedent that requires details to be agreed and/or activity to be undertaken either before you commence the development or before you occupy the development. This is of critical importance. If you do not comply with the condition precedent, you may invalidate this permission and be investigated by our enforcement team. Please pay particular attention to these requirements. To discharge the conditions and lawfully comply with conditions you should make application online your an via www.colchester.gov.uk/planning or by using the application form entitled 'Application for approval of details reserved by a condition following full permission or listed building consent' (currently form 12 on the planning application forms section of our website). A fee is also payable, with the relevant fees set out on our website.

#### 3) Informative on Any Application With a Site Notice

PLEASE NOTE that a site notice was erected in a publicly visible location at the site. Colchester Borough Council would appreciate your co-operation in taking the site notice down and disposing of it properly, in the interests of the environment.

#### 4) SuDs

A Suitably Qualified Person(s) must have a background in flood risk and be assessed by staff at Essex County Council before reviewing and providing any supporting statements to say that an application is technically acceptable. The assessment of a suitably Qualified Person will be carried out by members of the Development and Flood Risk team and may be liable to a charge. Following the initial assessment of a Suitably Qualified Person(s) subsequent reviews will take place and if deemed necessary Qualified Person status may be withdrawn or the person(s) assessed may be required to carry out further training and assessment at additional charge. The applicant may use ECC SuDS Planning Written Advice service to have their FRA/ Drainage strategy reviewed to provide a formal letter confirming this is acceptable issued. Further details on the SuDS Planning Advice service can be found at: https://flood.essex.gov.uk/new-development-advice/applyfor-suds-advice/

#### 5) Landscaping

Detailed landscape proposals, if/when submitted in order to discharge landscape conditions should first be cross-checked against the Council's Landscape Guidance Note LIS/B (this available on this CBC landscape webpage under Landscape Consultancy by clicking the 'read our guidance' link)'.

#### 6) Archaeology

PLEASE NOTE The submitted scheme of archaeological investigation should be in accordance with an agreed brief. This can be procured beforehand by the developer from Colchester Borough Council. Please see the Council's website for further information: http://www.colchester.gov.uk

#### 7) Highways

All work within or affecting the highway is to be laid out and constructed by prior arrangement with and to the requirements and specifications of the Highway Authority; all details shall be agreed before the commencement of works.

The applicants should be advised to contact the Development Management Team by email at development.management@essexhighways.org or by post to:

SMO1 – Essex Highways Colchester Highways Depot, 653 The Crescent, Colchester CO49YQ

	Planning Committee	Item 8
Colchester	4 March 2021	
Report of	Assistant Director of Place and Client Author Karen Syrett	t
Title	Applications Determined in Accordance with Officer Scheme of Delegation	
Wards affected	All	

#### 1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report gives details of the applications which have been made since the last meeting in accordance with the revised scheme of delegation agreed at the Committee's meeting on 21 January 2021 to provide for the determination of planning applications for the duration of the operation of virtual meetings. This arrangement will be subject to a review by the Committee in May/June 2021.

#### 2. Recommended Decision

2.1 To note the applications listed in the attached Appendix which have been determined under the revised scheme of delegation.

### Appendix 1

Details of Applications determined in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to the Assistant Director of Place and Client

App. Ref.	Site	Description	Ward	Recommendation	Decision
202522	Halstead Road, Eight Ash Green	Revised access	Lexden & Braiswick	Approval	Approval
202438	Bromans farm, East Mersea	Conversion of barn to dwelling	Mersea & Pyefleet	Approval	Approval
202439 (LB consent)	Bromans farm, East Mersea	Conversion of barn to dwelling	Mersea & Pyefleet	Approval	Approval
192441	Bridge House, Hythe Quay	18 apartments	Old Heath & the Hythe	Approval	Approval
201217	Former Homebase, St Andrews Ave	Subdivision of retail unit	Greenstead	Approval	
202552	Northern Gateway Sports Park	Storage buildings	Rural North	Approval	Approval